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INFORMATION

THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON
November 18, 1975

MEMORANDUM FOR: THE PRESIDENT

' .
FROM: DONALD RUMSFELBZ /(/ -
SUBJECT: Transcript of the hearings

on my nomination,

I believe it would be useful if you would review the report.

It reflects the kinds of concerns that exist across a range of
individuals in the Senate.

Second, it reflects, to some extent, the concerns and questions
we are finding in the country on these matters.

Finally, particularly the questions of Senator Jackson, reflect
a concern about the operation of the NSC., You will note I made
responses along the lines we have discussed., I think it is going
to take the best efforts of all of us to see that it works in'
practice, -
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"However, any attempt to specify a date for conclusion of an equitable agrees.
“ment would be speculation.

Question 11, If an agreement cannot be reached in those talks (MBFR), what
changes would you anticipate making in the NATO force structure?

Answer. As long as there is a chance of success in the MBFR talks, it would
be unwise, and might even be harmful, to speak of what force changes might
be made should the talks fail. While the talks are going on, Allied nations,
including the United States, are continuing to make those force improvements
that are necessary to maintain a deterrent to aggression in Europe.

Question, 12. Do you feel that we now possess a credible conventional deterrent
to a Warsaw Pact attack in Western Europe?

Answer. Yes, and I think the Warsaw Pact nations think so, too. But, to pre-
serve and enhance the credibility of this deterrent, it will be necessary to take
full account of the real improvements in the Pact’s conventional capabilities
and to take the necessary steps in our own Defense programs to ensure that an
acceptable balance is maintained.

Question 13. If the Warsaw Pact were to imitiate an attack on Western
Furope, do you think that they would use nuclear weapons? Please explain.
Are we prepared for a nuclear attack?

Answer. We cannot be certain about the manner in which the Warsaw Pact
might initiate or carry out an attack. Given the current balance of forces hetween
East and West, military aggression is not felt to he likely. UIntil recently many
analysts have considered that Soviet doctrine envisaged an early use of nuclear
weapons in a European conflict on a rather massive scale. On the other hand,
the Soviets might be reluctant to initiate widespread nuclear aggression in
Europe, thereby destroying much of what would presumably be the object of
such aggression. It is possible, therefore, that war in Europe might be confined
to the conventional level, at least for a substantial perind. In the uncertainty
of what the Pact nations might or might not do, two questions must he asked:
considering all the different kinds of weapons they have and the ways they might
he used, can we safely conclude that they could not be used against us or our
allies?

Question 1), In the event of Warsaw Pact aggression in Western Furone.
would you recommend the use of strategic nnelear weanons if both conventional
forces and tactical nuelear weapons failed to stop that aggression?

Answer. I prefer not to speculate about the circumstances in which it might
he necessary to recommend emnloyine strategic nuclear weapons. Our strategic
nielear arsenal is one part of the NATO triad of conventional. theater nuclear
and sfrategic nuclear forces. NATO strategv contemplates taking only those
stens necessary to repel aggression and safeguard the integrity of the North
Atlantie Treaty area.

Question 15. Do von feel that our NATO allies are making n fair contribufion
to their defense? If U.S. forces were reduced, could our Allies increase their
contribution ?

Answer, There is always room for imnrovement. however. our NATO Allies
face economie difficulties. as we do. Their level of effort, and ours, must erow
stronger as the Warsaw Pact forces grow stronger. Enrone as a whole has heen
inereasing its defense expenditures in real terms mareinally each vear: it must
continme to do s0. Moreover. to make hetter nge of available resources, to avoid
waoete, we must work to standardize NATO wearons and eanipment and to
retionalize NATO defense forres and tasks. Tf T8, forces were redneed the
Alies would have to adant crisis budget programs which would he diffienlt for
them to accomplish under present economic conditions, as it would he for us.
Aloreover, anv unilateral 1.8, reductions would raise questions about the con-
tinued need for strong defenses. and would likely trigger a series of similar
reductions by our Allies, with disastrous consequences for NATO defense.

Duestion 16. Which element of our strateeic Triad do you feel is the strongest?
Whirh elemeut do vou feel is the weakest ? Please exnlain.

Answer. Bach element of the Triad has its own particular strengths, They con-
stitute a mutually reinforcing whole in which each part plays an indispensable
role,

Duestion 17, Do vou believe in the eancent of limited nnrlear war? Tf ves. wonld
vou de«cribe to us a possible limited nuelear war scenarin? Flow would such a war
end ? Wouldn’t ending such a war require some degree of rationality on hoth sides?
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I« such rationality possible while nuclear missiles are being hurled back and
forth? How many people in tlie U.S. would be killed in the scenario which you
have described?

Answer, It is essential that the U.S. have the capability to meet an attack at
every level of conflict and that we be able to conduct military operations at the
lowest possible level of violence consistent with achievement of our objectives.
That is my general concept of our military needs for deterrence and detente, but
I am not in a position at the moment to set forth specific battlefield scenarios.

Question 18. When will the U.S. have a counterforce capability ? How much will
that cost?

Answer. This question is of sufficient complexity that I would prefer to consult
in depth the appropriate DOD officials before attempting to respond in detail.

Qucstion 19. Why do we need a counterforce capability? Why is the “mutual
assured destruction” strategy no longer valid?

Answer, On this matter I am in general agreement with the views as set forth
to this Committee by Secretary Schlesinger. It is a subject I wish to study fur-
ther in the period ahead and therefore will defer a comprehensive response until
a later date,

Question 20. We now have approximately 7,500 tactical nuclear weapons in
Western Europe. Is it possible that some of these weapons could be removed ? How
many, and which ones, do you feel can be withdrawn in the next year? Two years?
Three years? '

Answer. I understand that there is a review of our requirements for tactical
nuclear weapons in Europe currently being conducted. This is a technical and
complex subject and I am reluctant to comment in detail without the benefit of a
thiorough analysis both of our stockpiles and our requirements. Any possible modi-
fications which might at some point be called for, should be subject of full and
complete consultation with our Allies.

Question 21. Mr. Rumsfeld in recent weeks there have been many accounts of
improprieties on the part of some Defense Department officials. These have con-
cerned specifically the acceptance of gifts, free trips, entertainment, ete., from
Defense contractors. If you are confirmed as Secretary of Defense, would you be
willing to require all Defense Department officials to publicly report any such
contacts with Defense contractors? Could this be done by February 1, 19767

Answer. Defense Department officials should not accept gifts, free trips, enter-
tainment or gratuities from contractors. Relations between Defense Department
officials and Defense contractors should be on a business basis. Defense officials
must not only avoid improprieties such as the acceptance of gratuities, they must
avoid actions which would give the appearance of impropriety. This is a matter
which T would look into carefully as Secretary of Defense and take whatever
steps are necessary.

Question 22. Will you rule out running for any elective office within the next
twelve months?

Answer. As I indicated to Senator Jackson in response to his questions, T will
donate my full energy to the Department of Defense, I said, and I repeat it here,
I am not running for anything. My intention would be to go to the Department
of Defense and to serve as effectively as I know how for as long as the President
wishes me to. .

The Crratraan. Senator Jackson wanted to ask further questions,
and anyone else can, of conrse, who wishes to. It was agreed here by
the six members present that assuming we finish the questions to-
morrow, 1f we do, that we recommend that the committee take a vote
with a view of reporting this matter to the Senate. That is especially
true in view of the fact that next 'week will be the last week before
the Thanksgiving recess of the Senate. Even though we have a capable
Acting Secretary, I think if this gentleman is going to be confirmed,
which T believe he will, we should put him on the job.

Senator Taft, that brings it to you.

Senator Taft, if yon will yield just a moment, may I say that the
dispatch with which I recommend that the committee act in no way
implied that T had any concern about the Acting Secretary.
























































